



# CLASS<sup>®</sup> Math

Screening and Progress Monitoring Guide Grades K-1 Download the latest mCLASS:Math materials at <u>www.mclasshome.com</u> on the Support & Resource Center.

Copyright © 2009 Wireless Generation, Inc. All rights reserved.

No part of this publication may be reproduced, transmitted, transcribed, stored in a retrieval system, or translated into any other language in any form or by any means without the written permission of Wireless Generation, Inc., except current authorized users of the mCLASS system, who may photocopy this publication for use exclusively in connection with the mCLASS system so long as (i) any portion photocopied is duplicated in its entirety and not edited, altered or changed in any way and (ii) no monetary charge is made for the photocopied material (other than reasonable duplication fees).

#### **PRODUCT OVERVIEW**

Introduction1
The mCLASS:Math System
Screening and Progress Monitoring
Diagnostic Interviews
ACT
Research Base
Background4
Categories of Mathematical Thinking4
Quick Retrieval
Number Sense5
Written Computation5
Results of Pilot Data Collection5
Risk Levels and Overall Status for Grades K-1
Research Background and Findings6
Risk Levels and Benchmark Goals6
Overall Status7

#### HANDHELD ESSENTIALS

The Handheld Computer
Kev Features
Application Buttons
Input Area
Preferences
Main Menu
Preferences Menu
Digitizer/Touchscreen
Date and Time
Power Management
Sounds and Alerts
Writing Area
Entering Text
Other Features
Note Pad13
Categories
Calendar14
Battery14
Power Gauge14
Information Loss
Reset
Synchronization
The Process
Syncing
ŴGSync
Secure Web Site
Sync Troubleshooting
Handheld Not Syncing
Assessment Results Not Synced
Classes Not Appearing on the Handheld16

. . . . . . . . . .

• •

### CONTENTS

#### ASSESSMENT ROAD MAP

Administration Schedule	17
Measures by Grade	17
Screening Windows	17
Progress Monitoring Frequency	17
Starting a New Measure	
Class List	
Student Menu	20
Student Home	
Screening	
Progress Monitoring	21
Common Features	
Reminders	
Practice and Instructions	23
Timers	23
End Timed Measures Early	
Discontinue Rule	25
Invalidating During Administration	
Results Screen	
Review Mode	
Deleting	
Sector Se	
Sharing	

#### **ADMINISTRATION & SCORING**

Counting	29
Purpose	29
Materials	29
Scoring Rules	29
Administration	
Risk Levels	32
Missing Number	33
Purpose	33
Materials	33
Scoring Rules	33
Administration	34
Risk Levels	37
Next Number	
Purpose	39
Materials	39
Scoring Rules	
Administration	40
Risk Levels	42
Number Facts	43
Purpose	43
Materials	43
Scoring Rules	43
Administration	44
Risk Levels	

. . . . . . . .

Iumber Identification	47
Purpose	47
Materials	47
Scoring Rules	47
Administration	48
Risk Levels	51
Quantity Discrimination	53
Purpose	53
Materials	53
Scoring Rules	53
Administration	54
Risk Levels	57
Activities	59

#### **RESULTS ANALYSIS**

The mCLASS Web Site	63
Types of Reports	63
Logging In	63
Accessing mCLASS:Math	64
Navigating mCLASS:Math Web Reports	65
The Banner	65
Changing the Class	65
Report Tabs	65
Screening Class Report	
Student Report	67
Progress Monitoring Class Report	
Student Progress Report	

REFERENCES
------------

• •

•

## Introduction

The mCLASS<sup>®</sup>:Math program, available in both English and Spanish, is an integrated screening, progress monitoring, and diagnostic assessment system that helps determine children's understanding of mathematical skills and concepts in kindergarten through third grade.

This comprehensive assessment helps educators identify students who may be at risk for math difficulty (Screening), to monitor student progress and response to instruction (Progress Monitoring), and to conduct investigative interviews to understand the cognitive processes underlying performance (Diagnostic Interviews). The combination of these results can guide instruction in a way that positively affects mathematical development.



There are four elements of the mCLASS:Math assessment, <u>Screening</u>, <u>Progress Monitoring</u>, <u>Diagnostic</u> <u>Interviews</u>, and Activities. Check the Support & Resource Center at <u>www.mclasshome.com</u> to download the latest user guides and supplementary materials.

The mCLASS:Math software guides assessors to:

- Measure an individual child's mastery of fundamental mathematical skills
- Acquire insight into a child's mathematical thinking
- Help children overcome mathematics learning difficulties
- Think more creatively about mathematics teaching and learning
- Track critical mathematics skill development
- Conduct meaningful mathematics instruction

The mCLASS:Math assessment is used to develop <u>reports</u> used by teachers, coaches, and administrators to:

- Review classroom and student data useful for gauging success in mathematics learning
- Provide assessors with time-sensitive professional development involving early mathematics learning and interviewing techniques

# The mCLASS:Math System

Employing the innovative handheld-to-Web technology used for mCLASS literacy assessments, the mCLASS:Math software has been designed to make mathematics assessment more effective, helping assessors analyze data to shape instruction. Preliminary studies of mCLASS assessments show that the software saves assessors time, guides assessors through complex diagnostic tools, and closes the loop between assessment and instruction.

The mCLASS:Math system has five components, all aimed at fostering successful mathematics skill development.

1. Software: Includes all tasks, instructions, and practice questions for each grade level, as well as results calculations.



- 3. Synchronization: Transfers the assessment information from the handheld to the database maintained at <u>https://www.mclasshome.com</u>.
- 4. Reports: Provides Web-based class and student reports to aid in defining instructional changes.
- 5. Activities: Recommends exercises that are strategically connected to each child's results.

# **Screening and Progress Monitoring**

The Screening and Progress Monitoring components work together to identify potentially at-risk students and to aid in assessing response to instruction for those students. The Screening assessment is administered during benchmark windows at the beginning, middle, and end of the school year. Progress Monitoring should happen throughout the year (at least one measure for each student every 14 days); however, frequency of administration should be higher for students with greater intervention needs.

- Screening and Progress Monitoring are designed to assess three broad categories of mathematical thinking: Quick Retrieval, Number Sense, and Written Computation.
- Each measure correlates to scientifically valid standardized measures.
- The six measures of Screening and Progress Monitoring are Counting, Missing Number, Next Number, Number Identification, Number Facts, and Quantity Discrimination.

Screening and Progress Monitoring focus on everyday performance in the classroom.

The Screening assessment identifies children who may be at risk for math difficulty and who would benefit from Progress Monitoring and Diagnostic Interviews. Six brief but effective research-based measures are administered to students individually to identify those who are struggling and to aid in grouping students for instruction.

The Progress Monitoring assessment provides a way to detect whether at-risk children are progressing at a rate that will get them back to grade level. Since this assessment is ongoing, it takes a snapshot of the child's mathematics skills development and, equally as important, provides support for adapting instruction toward greater achievement in this subject area.





# **Diagnostic Interviews**

Students are assessed through a series of interviews, exercises, and stimulating conversations that measure development of mathematical concepts and foster a child's ability to articulate knowledge of his or her own mathematical thinking. The mCLASS:Math software analyzes a child's answers and problem-solving strategies, providing assessors with recommendations for instructional activities that help the child master the skills and concepts addressed.

The interviews are administered in a consistent manner to ensure fair and reliable measures of child performance. The mCLASS:Math software guides the administration of standardized mathematics items appropriate to the child's grade level.

Diagnostic Interviews reveal the child's underlying thinking to the assessor.

- Interviews are designed to assess counting, addition, subtraction, multiplication, and written math skills.
- Each interview has multiple modules that correspond to specific mathematics principles.
- Instructional recommendations are based on each child's performance and employment of particular strategies.
- Activities are suggested for the entire class and individual children.

# ACT

The **ACT** tab provides a list of activities customized to a child's needs. Activities are suggested on <u>www.mclasshome.com</u>, and the research-based classroom activities are printed in the Activities Guide available with each kit. To join our community of teachers who contribute activities to this product, please email mathact@wgen.net.

# **Research Base**

The mCLASS:Math system is based on modern developmental, educational, and cognitive science research that shows how children develop mathematical knowledge. The research underlying the assessment highlights several essential features of children's mathematical learning:

- Children develop everyday mathematical knowledge outside school and use it to assimilate what is taught in school.
- Both basic skills and conceptual understanding are essential for mathematics proficiency.
- Children use a variety of strategies to solve mathematical problems.
- Limitations in memory contribute to children's mathematics difficulties.
- Children with mathematical learning difficulties often possess important intellectual strengths, such as informal strategies useful for counting.

The mCLASS:Math system provides assessors a way to use these research findings and ideas in their pedagogy with tools that interpret a child's answers and behavior and then suggest an effective approach to instruction.

It is crucial for assessors to follow not only what their children understand, but also how they understand. Administrators should be guided by a research- and theory-based view of mathematical

proficiency. Evaluations ought to measure how effectively programs promote both basic skills and deeper understanding. The development of the mCLASS:Math system brings the research findings and theories to bear on the thinking and practice of both assessors and administrators.

#### Background

The mCLASS:Math assessment draws upon three major schools of thought.

- The extensive cognitive science literature of "Mathematical Thinking and Learning" (Ginsburg, Cannon, Eisenband, & Pappas, 2006), "The Development of Children's Mathematical Thinking" (Ginsburg, Klein, & Starkey, 1998), and other supporting publications shaped the development of the mCLASS:Math program so that it would:
  - Embed key cognitive concepts
  - Include a focus on number sense, shown to be important in predicting academic achievement
  - Consider the memory limitations that appear to contribute to mathematics learning problems
  - Account for strategies and backup strategies that underlie children's arithmetic, as well as the concepts that demonstrate understanding of the basic operations
- 2. Curriculum-Based Measurement (CBM), the two-part screening and progress monitoring methodology, promotes repeated assessment to advance long-range instructional goals. Teachers with mCLASS:Math use CBM methodology when they:
  - Administer short assessments on a frequent basis
  - Graph scores to evaluate a child's progress toward specific goals
  - Use data to make decisions about the effectiveness of instruction and to identify students who might be struggling or who are at risk
  - Monitor progress by administering alternate forms of the measures to evaluate whether students are on track or need additional intervention to meet identified goals
- 3. The tradition of clinical interview, originally developed by Jean Piaget and used extensively since that time in cognitive developmental research and education, defines the kind of flexible questioning that is especially valuable for formative assessment in the classroom. The mCLASS:Math assessment uses this approach to:
  - Help educators uncover underlying thinking in a way that standard tests or CBM measures cannot uncover
  - Guide the teacher through complex questioning

#### **Categories of Mathematical Thinking**

The mCLASS:Math Screening and Progress Monitoring assessments combine three categories of mathematical thinking (Quick Retrieval, Number Sense, and Written Computation) to cover the essential skills of early mathematics: retrieving information quickly, computation, and comprehension of mathematical concepts.

#### Quick Retrieval

There is widespread agreement that quick retrieval of the basic number facts, or combinations, is both important for learning mathematics and useful for a CBM task. The research shows that knowledge



of number combinations predicts achievement and that children who experience difficulty with math often do poorly on number combinations. In its essence, quick retrieval means that children get the answer quickly and do not have to expend much mental energy on calculation. Quick retrieval may result from rote memory or from fluency using rapid counting or basic principles such as the commutativity of addition. Currently, the mCLASS:Math assessment assesses quick retrieval through the Number Facts measure.

#### Number Sense

A series of items gauge a child's general ability to draw conclusions from working with numbers. Number sense involves basic intuitions and ideas about numbers, including concepts that make computation easier or eliminate the need for it altogether. Number sense includes the ability to compare the magnitude of numbers, to understand the relative effect of arithmetical operations on numbers, and to have meaningful referents for number and quantity. It also includes the ability to know whether certain numbers are plausible answers to certain problems; to break numbers into convenient parts that make calculation easier; and to apply basic operational rules to arithmetic equations. The mCLASS:Math assessment uses multiple indicators to evaluate number sense.

- In kindergarten, mCLASS:Math measures a child's ability to count out loud (Counting), to discern between the quantities of two sets of numbers (Quantity Discrimination), and to identify the missing number from a pattern of three numbers (Missing Number).
- In first grade, mCLASS:Math continues to measure the abilities assessed in Quantity Discrimination and Missing Number. It also measures the child's ability to name the number that follows a verbally presented number (Next Number).

#### Written Computation

This straightforward category involves basic reading and understanding of written mathematics. Previous research has found high alternate form reliability, test-retest reliability, and criterion validity for this kind of measure.

In kindergarten and first grade, the Number Identification measure examines a child's ability to identify individual, randomly generated numbers between 1 and 100. The mCLASS:Math assessment also offers early indicators of written abilities even before children begin solving written computation problems.

#### **Results of Pilot Data Collection**

To establish the validity of the mCLASS:Math Screening and Progress Monitoring measures, pilot data was collected from 135 kindergarten and first grade students using a paper version of the measures. Assessors followed written instructions in administering the materials, which are now provided on the handheld. The mCLASS:Math research team administered the Counting, Missing Number, Number Identification, and Quantity Discrimination measures to kindergartners and Number Identification, Number Facts, Quantity Discrimination, Next Number, and Missing Number measures to first graders. Every student was also given a standardized math assessment, the Test of Early Mathematics Ability (TEMA). Using the pilot data, mCLASS:Math researchers fit several preliminary structural equation models to evaluate the strength of the relationships between Early Numeracy Proficiency, measured by each of the domains of the Screening and Progress Monitoring, and the TEMA scores, as well as the interrelationships among the mCLASS:Math measures. Initial analyses showed strong correlations between the mCLASS:Math measures and the TEMA, indicating that the measures are valid indicators of early mathematics performance.

# **Risk Levels and Overall Status for Grades K-1**

#### **Research Background and Findings**

The mCLASS:Math research team administered the assessment's grade-appropriate measures to kindergartners and first graders. Each student was also given the standardized Test of Early Mathematics Ability (TEMA) or the math sub-test Young Children's Achievement Test (YCAT). The team found strong correlations between the mCLASS:Math measures and these established criterion variables, indicating that the measures are valid indicators of early mathematics performance.

By comparing the norm-referenced TEMA or YCAT assessments and scores to national mCLASS:Math data collected in the fall and spring of the 2006-2007 school year, the researchers were able to determine benchmarks for the measures. In each of the measures, students are considered at risk for difficulty achieving a goal at specified points in the academic year if they perform in the lowest 25th percentile of sample norms. Students who perform above the 75th percentile using sample norms are considered to be at low risk.

### **Risk Levels and Benchmark Goals**

As an index of performance on an individual measure, Risk Levels of Deficit, Emerging, or Established are assigned relative to that measure's goal, the student's grade, and the time of year. On both the handheld and the Web, each Risk Level is represented by a colored box.



Deficit (red) – Far below benchmark expectations

Emerging (yellow) – Advancing toward, but not meeting, benchmark expectations

Established (green) - Meets or exceeds benchmark expectations

Each assessment period has its own Benchmark Goal, which is the fluency score required to be Established at that time of year. As an example, during the middle of the year in kindergarten, students who count in the range of 30–69 during the one-minute measure are not hitting the Benchmark Goal and are considered Emerging. Students who score 29 or less are considered Deficit. Those who score 70 or more meet the Benchmark Goal and are considered Established.

Keep in mind, Benchmark Goals are minimums. Ultimately, all students should be Established by or during the End-of-Year assessment period; this is called the End-of-Year Goal. For instance, every kindergartner should be able to count from 83 upward before the year's end.

With more research, goals may continue to be refined.

# **Overall Status**

After the student has completed all of the applicable measures for an assessment period, an Overall Status is designated, signifying the amount of instructional support that may be necessary for a student to continue on a path toward success in mathematics. Overall Status is based on a combination of Risk Levels and is more an evaluation of Risk Levels than a sum of the measures' scores; the evaluation differs by grade.

The circular Overall Status icon appears on both the handheld and the Web. Each type of Overall Status represents the general instructional support recommended for a young student to become a well-developed, mature student of mathematics.

Intensive (red) – Thorough instructional support is recommended.

Strategic (yellow) – Heightened instructional support is recommended.

Benchmark (green) – Current instructional support is sufficient.

\_

Incomplete (gray) – Not all measures are finished.

Overall Status by Grade and Assessment Period										
Grade	Intensive (Red)	Strategic (Yellow)	Benchmark (Green)							
Kindergarten	Deficit for two or more measures	Any combination that does not fit the Intensive or Benchmark criteria	Established on two or more measures, without any Deficit							
Crode 1	Deficit for two or more measures, without any Established	Any combination that does not fit the	Established on three or more measures, without any Deficit							
Grade I	Deficit for four or more measures and one or less Established	Intensive or Benchmark criteria	Established on four or more measures and one or less Deficit							



# The Handheld Computer

The handheld computer, or handheld, provides the mobility and function needed to utilize Wireless Generation's mCLASS<sup>®</sup> software solutions. To begin assessing students, you must first become familiar with a handheld.

Some features outlined here may differ depending on the model you are using. Explore your handheld's specific functions by taking a "Quick Tour." Tap the **Quick Tour** icon on the handheld's Main menu.



### **Key Features**

### **Application Buttons**



#### **Input Area**





# Preferences

### Main Menu

The Main menu provides access to all handheld functions.

- 1. Make sure that All appears on the pick list in the upper right of the Main menu by tapping the arrow and selecting that category.
- 2. Tap the **Prefs** icon.



Preferences	
General	1
• Date & Time	• Digitizer
<ul> <li>Formats</li> </ul>	Graffiti 2
<ul> <li>Keylock</li> </ul>	• Power
<ul> <li>Security</li> </ul>	Sounds & Alerts
<ul> <li>Writing Area</li> </ul>	
Communicatio	on
<ul> <li>Connection</li> </ul>	Network
Personal	
<ul> <li>Buttons</li> </ul>	Color Theme
	•

### **Preferences Menu**

Define your system preferences in this menu, including sound, date and time, writing area, and power management.



### Digitizer/Touchscreen

The Digitizer and Touchscreen applications calibrate the handheld to the touch, aligning the position of the stylus to the screen's electronic touch sensors.

- 1. Select **Digitizer** or **Touchscreen** from the Preferences menu.
- 2. Hold the stylus as you would a pen.
- 3. Tap the center of each target on the screen until calibrated.

Repeat this process when the handheld doesn't respond properly to light tapping.



#### **Date and Time**

Student's assessments are time stamped for reporting purposes. Setting the correct date and time is critical for synchronization and collection of accurate data.

- 1. Tap the **Location** arrow to select your city.
- 2. Tap the dotted **Set Date** and **Set Time** boxes to open dialogs that guide the rest of the process.
- 3. Tap **Done** when finished.



#### **Power Management**

In order to conserve battery life, the handheld automatically turns off after a certain length of idle time. During assessment periods, set the handheld to turn off after 3 minutes.

- 1. Tap the arrow to set **Auto-off** to 3 minutes.
- 2. Set **On while Charging** to Off.
- 3. Set **Beam Receive** to On.
- 4. Tap **Done** when finished.



#### Sounds and Alerts

Control the level of the different types of sounds on the handheld. System sounds are sounds the handheld makes when performing system functions, such as syncing.

- 1. Select **Silent** to prevent sounds from interrupting an assessment.
- 2. Tap **Done** when finished.



#### Writing Area

When working with mCLASS applications it is important to have the writing area constricted by putting it in the Off mode. Writing will then be available within the input area only. Write letters on the left side of the text input area and numbers on the right side. Capital letters are made by writing between the letter and number areas.

Pr	Preferences C								٦v	٧r	ner									
	Keyboard 🕻								0											
Thi	This handheld computer is owned by:									<i>(</i> :										
		Т		Т		т		т				-					Т			_
q	Ŷ	۲.	e	1	r		t		y	ι	I			0	1	p	1		٩	
ŧ۱		a		s	0	ц	1	f	g		h		j		k		I		;	I
ca	С		z	X	$\langle  $	C	:	۷	•	b	r	٦	r	n		,			•	L
sh	shift space - /																			
Done abc 123 Int'l																				

### **Entering Text**

Practice entering text by setting the owner of your handheld. This name may be changed, but changing the name here will not change the desktop application's user name.

- 1. Once the blinking cursor appears, write directly in the input area.
- 2. You may also tap **ABC** within the input area to open the onscreen keyboard and type.
- 3. Tap **Done** when finished.



# **Other Features**

### Note Pad

The Note Pad is another useful feature both for personal and classroom purposes. Many teachers use it to record student observations throughout the school day.

- 1. Tap **Note Pad** on the Main menu or press the application hard button.
- 2. Begin writing directly on the screen to create a new note or tap **New**.
- 3. Place the note in a category by choosing from the pick list in the upper right.

Edit Categories... 🚯

Edit Categories

Enter a new category name:

Cancel

Business

Personal

Student Notes

ΟK

### Categories

Categories function like a filing system for information stored on the handheld.

- 1. From the Main menu, and almost any application, choose **Edit Categories** on the Category pick list.
- 2. Tap **New** to create a category (for example, Student Notes to organize observations recorded using Note Pad).
- 3. Tap **OK** when finished.
- 4. Check the application's pick list to verify that the new category appears.



#### Calendar

Use the calendar to plan activities ahead of time. During assessment periods it may be useful to block time for students and set alarms to help stay on schedule.

- 1. Tap the **Calendar** icon or press the application button.
- 2. Tap an empty line to plan a new event, then tap **Details**.
- 3. Assign values to date, time, category, and recurrence as needed.



### Battery

### **Power Gauge**

If the battery drains, all information entered after your last sync may be lost. Frequent charging is the only way to avoid information loss unless you have a handheld with persistent memory. See your handheld's manual for more information.

- As the battery discharges, the gauge loses its color.
- When the handheld is plugged in with the power cord, a lightning bolt indicates that the battery is charging.
- Recharge the handheld or replace removable batteries as soon as the low battery warning appears.





OK

### **Information Loss**

If the battery has run down and assessments have been lost, recharge and sync three times. Only data synced *prior* to battery loss can be recovered.

- 1. Sync at an mCLASS Sync Station to restore data from the backup folder.
- 2. Tap **WGSync**, then enter your user name and password.
- 3. Sync once to install updates and again to update class data.
- 4. Verify that all applications and assessment data have been recovered.
- 5. Confirm that the date is correct.



#### Reset

If the handheld locks up, try resetting. Depending on the severity of the problem, different types of resets may be performed. Never use a sharp object (some styli have a reset pin under the tip).

- 1. Soft reset: Press the **Reset** button on the back panel until the logo screen appears.
- Warm reset: Hold the Up button on the five-way navigator and press the Reset button until the logo screen appears.
- 3. Hard reset: *This will delete all unsynchronized records*. Repeat step 1 while holding down the **Power** button.



# **Synchronization**

### The Process

Synchronization is the operation by which the handheld and computer exchange information. You can never sync too often, and you should sync at least once a day.

The computer must be connected to the Internet when syncing with the mCLASS server. This syncs assessment results, downloads updates, and automatically creates reports.

HotSync
Welcome.
Local Modem ↓ ↓ Cradle/Cable
Log Help

### Syncing

- 1. Plug the sync cable into both the handheld and the computer's USB port. For some models, you will place the handheld on a cradle.
- 2. Tap the **Sync** button on the Main menu then on the Sync screen.
- 3. Log in to <u>https://www.mclasshome.com</u> to ensure that the current date appears beneath Sync Status on the right side of the screen.



### WGSync

WGSync is the application that tells your handheld to exchange assessment information with Wireless Generation's servers.

- 1. Tap **WGSync** on the Main menu.
- 2. Verify user name and password or enter that information for the first time by tapping the boxes.
- 3. Tap **OK**.
- 4. Tap the **Home** soft button on the handheld to return to the Main menu.



### Secure Web Site

Only data involving mCLASS products are synced to the secure mCLASS Home Web site. After checking the Sync Status, you may check assessment results, see "What's New" at Wireless Generation, update settings, and consult the Support & Resource Center.

The Support & Resource Center contains up-to-date user guides and helpful troubleshooting information.

# Sync Troubleshooting

### Handheld Not Syncing

If you are using an mCLASS Sync Station but nothing happens when you sync:

- 1. Verify that the sync cable is plugged into both the handheld and the computer.
- 2. Verify that the sync icon appears on the desktop's toolbar. If not, go to the Start menu, open Program Files, then your handheld software and select your sync manager.
- 3. If you still cannot sync, reboot the computer and repeat the first two steps.
- 4. If this issue is not resolved, contact Wireless Generation's Customer Care department by email at help@wgen.net or call (800) 823-1969, option 3, Monday-Friday 7 a.m. 7 p.m. EST.

### **Assessment Results Not Synced**

If your assessment results have not synced, confirm that:

- 1. The Sync Station computer has a live connection to the Internet
- 2. The mCLASS:Sync software has been installed on the computer.
- 3. The WGSync icon appears on the Main menu.
- 4. Your user name and password are entered, and that is the same user name and password you use to log in to <u>https://www.mclasshome.com</u>.
- 5. The conduit is on the list of items and set to synchronize. To check this, click the **Sync icon, then** click the **Custom tab**.

### **Classes Not Appearing on the Handheld**

If your classes do not appear on the handheld after syncing, confirm the following:

- 1. You've synced twice after installing WGSync at an mCLASS Sync Station.
- 2. The user name and password on the handheld are the same as those used to log in to <u>https://</u><u>www.mclasshome.com</u>.
- 3. A Class list has been created on mCLASS Home.
- 4. You are the teacher assigned to the class. To check this, go to the Class section of the Web site and verify that you are designated as an Owner of this class.

# **Administration Schedule**

Measures in both Screening and Progress Monitoring are administered according to grade level.

#### **Measures by Grade**

Maagura	Grade	evel						
weasure	Kindergarten	Grade 1						
Counting	Yes	Yes						
Missing Number	sing Number Yes Yes							
Next Number	No	Yes						
Number Identification	Yes	Yes						
Number Facts	No	Yes						
Quantity Discrimination	Yes	Yes						

#### **Screening Windows**

It is recommended that mCLASS:Math Screening take place during three distinct periods of time. These time periods are called screening windows.

- 1. Beginning of Year (Beg) assessments are usually conducted in September and October.
- 2. Middle of Year (Mid) assessments are usually conducted in January and February.
- 3. End of Year (End) assessments are usually conducted in April and May.

#### **Progress Monitoring Frequency**

Monitor progress in at least one measure every 14 days.

#### Starting a New Measure

- 1. Turn on the handheld and select **All** from the list in the upper right of the Main menu.
- 2. Tap the **mCLASS:Math** icon.



3. The mCLASS:Math Home screen appears. Tap **Tap Here to Begin**.



#### **Class List**

This screen displays each class to which you have access. The diamonds and dashes in the Screening column of the Class List still convey states of completion and serve as a jumping-off point for starting administration, which also remains exactly the same. The red, yellow, and green circles that represent Intensive, Strategic, and Benchmark Overall Statuses, respectively, are a concise way to see how each student is performing in the current assessment period.

- Choose one of two languages by tapping **EN** for English or **ES** for Spanish. Only words spoken to or by the child appear in Spanish; all navigational elements and instructions to the assessor remain in English.
- If you have more than one class, tap the **Class** list in the upper left to choose among them.
- Use the symbols to guide your choice of which child to assess.
   Screening



• To assess, tap a child's name or the icon corresponding to a recommendation in the appropriate column.

#### **Student Menu**

Select a child to open his or her Student Menu. This menu provides access to the different parts of the mCLASS:Math assessment, including the Student Home (represented by the child's name), Screening administration (thermometer), Progress Monitoring features (chart), Diagnostic Interviews (magnifying glass), and Activities (ACT).

#### Student Home

The Student Home provides an overview of a student's progress in each area of the mCLASS:Math assessment. Quickly see the student's status for Screening, Progress Monitoring, and Diagnostic Interviews.



#### Screening

The Select Measure list displays only those measures that can be administered to the chosen child during the current time of year. You can quickly see how many measures have been completed by tapping the list. Results for completed measures for each time of year display at the bottom of the screen in alphabetical order.

- 1. Choose a measure from the Select Measure list.
- 2. Tap **Start** to begin administration.



3. If the previous Screening measure was invalidated, choose to administer the Screening form again or to use a Progress Monitoring form. Forms that have been previously administered are indicated by tally marks.

Alternate Form Selection 🛛 🗵
The last Screening measure
was invalidated.
Reuse the Screening form.
Select a Progress Monitoring
form below.
/ Grade 1 - Form 1 👘
// Grade 1 - Form 2
// Grade 1 - Form 3
🗸 Grade 1 - Form 4
Grade 1 - Form 5
OK

#### **Progress Monitoring**

The Select Measure list displays only those measures that can be administered for the grade of the chosen child. Currently, mCLASS:Math recommends that at least one grade-appropriate measure be monitored every 14 days unless a Screening was administered less than 14 days earlier. After selecting a measure from the list, completed Progress Monitoring and Screening results for that measure display at the bottom of the screen, ordered by date. Screening results are color-coded according to risk level.

- 1. Choose a measure from the Select Measure list.
- 2. Tap **Start** to open the Progress Monitoring Form Selection screen.

mCLASS: Ma	th 🖉 🛛	
Lee H. Missing Number	V START	
Form Grade 1 - Beginning Grade 1 - Form 1	Date Score 09/01 4 09/28 6	View the form number used as well as the date and score.
Grade 1 - Form 2	10/10 6	
Grade 1 - Form 3 Grade 1 - Form 4 Grade 1 - Form 5	11/4 8	Tap a score to open the Results screen for the completed measure.

As on the Screening section, because Benchmark Goals for grades 2 and higher have not been established, completed measures for those grades are in a solid gray box.

Gray – Risk Levels are not defined for this grade.

3. Forms that have been previously administered are indicated by tally marks. Avoid administering the same form multiple times to ensure accuracy. Choose a form by tapping the form name, then tap **OK**.

Prog. Mon. Form Selection 🗵
Select a Progress Monitoring form to use.
7 Grade 1 - Form 1 👘
/ Grade 1 - Form 2
// Grade 1 - Form 3
🎢 Grade 1 - Form 4
Grade 1 - Form 5
Grade 1 - Form 6 🛛 🏺
ОК

# **Common Features**

Each measure has a number of similar features that guide you through administration; however, not all screens appear for each measure.

#### Reminders

This screen appears before beginning administration of a measure. It guides you through acceptable prompts and reminds you of measure-specific scoring rules.



Tap **Next** to proceed to the Practice or Instructions screen, depending on the measure.

#### **Practice and Instructions**

Following the Reminders screen, a series of scripted instructions guide you through practice (where necessary) and administration of the assessment. The Practice screens help the child understand what is expected of him or her. The Instructions screens contain specific prompts to be read to the child. If you have chosen to administer in Spanish, the prompts appear in Spanish.



During practice, you may coach the child in any way necessary to ensure that he or she understands what is expected during administration. When you are certain that both you and the child understand the instructions, tap **Begin**.



#### Timers

Many mCLASS:Math measures call for the assessor to track the time that passes between student responses. In Number Identification, for example, if the student hesitates for three seconds on a number the item is scored as incorrect to keep the assessment moving along.

The handheld provides two ways of monitoring time, the digital timer and the graphic counter.



The digital timer also operates as a **Start** and **Done** button at the beginning and end of a measure. (Administration of measures cannot be paused.)

Because the measures require assessment for only one minute, the handheld gives a visual warning when time is almost up. The assessment screen turns yellow when only five seconds remain.



At the end of the one-minute administration time, the screen returns to its original color. The timer flashes **Done** and the header turns purple. Tap **Done** to end the measure and review the results.

#### **End Timed Measures Early**

If you feel a student has reached his or her limit on a Screening or Progress Monitoring measure, you can tap the timer to end timed measures early. The student's score is not affected by ending a measure early.

1. During any timed mCLASS:Math measure, if a student stops responding or finishes early, tap the timer in the upper left corner.



2. You are prompted to confirm whether you want to end the measure. Tap **Yes** to end the measure and save the student's score. Tap **No** to continue assessing.

Note: The timer continues to run until 60 seconds elapse or you tap Yes.



3. Drag the bracket to the last item attempted, and tap **Done** to end the measure. For Number Facts, which has no bracket, tap **Done** to end the measure.

#### **Discontinue Rule**

If the child answers incorrectly on the first five consecutive items in any measure, tap **Yes** on the pop-up to stop or **No** to ignore the rule. If you discontinue, the Results screen opens displaying the child's score as 0; this is a valid, official score. If you choose to proceed, you will not have the choice to discontinue again.



#### **Invalidating During Administration**

If you choose to exit an incomplete measure, all answers will be discarded or invalidated.



If you do not wish to end a measure before it is completed, tap **No** on the Cancel confirmation box.

#### **Results Screen**

Interview results are only visible to those users with the appropriate access privileges. (If you believe you should have access to a result but do not, contact your technology coordinator or the Wireless Generation Customer Care center.) You can review the results on the handheld at any time after completion.

The fluency score is simply the number of correct responses the child provides in a minute. The graphic shows where students are in their mathematical development and only appears on the Screening Results screen.

From the Results screen, you can review answers, delete the measure, record notes, or go back to the Student Menu.

The Results screen has changed only for Screening scores; the Progress Monitoring Results screen remains the same as in the original mCLASS:Math User Guide. The Screening Results screen contains a graphical referent for seeing where students are in their mathematical skill development. The Running Man runs along a colored bar, showing which Risk Level students attained for a Screening measure as well as the exact score for that measure.



#### **Review Mode**

During administration of a measure, tap any answers at any time to mark them as incorrect.

After completing a measure, you may edit in Review Mode.



If there are many changes, you may want to invalidate the entire measure by tapping **Not Valid** (**Delete**). If you are not the person who administered this measure, the **Not Valid (Delete)** and **Valid** (**Exit)** buttons remain inactive. A message pops up to confirm whether you would like to delete the results.



Tap **Yes** to return to the Results screen or **No** to continue in Review Mode.

#### Deleting

Once you have completed a measure, you may delete it. Only the assessor who administered the measure may delete it, though. Tap **Delete**, represented by a trash can, to do so.

An interview should always be invalidated, or deleted, when an interruption or mistake occurs that undermines the validity of the overall score. Examples include:

- Intercom announcements
- Fire drills
- Scoring errors that can't easily be corrected

Lee Aaro	on, Grade 1 🛛 🖄	
Results		
Missing	Number	
Form	Grade 1 - Middle	
Fluency	20 Numbers/Min.	
	20 	
DEFICIT	EMERGING ESTABLISHED	
: 0	5 21 12 68 17 DONE	
	<b>^</b>	Tap the garbage can to delete a measure.

A message pops up to confirm deletion of the results.



Tap **Yes** to return to the student's Screening or Progress Monitoring screen, depending on which one you are administering. Tap **No** to stay on the Results screen.

#### Notes

Tap the **Note** icon in the lower left of the Results screen to record notes. Use the stylus as a pen to annotate a completed measure.



Once you have written a note on the screen, tap **OK** to return to the Results screen. To erase what you wrote, tap **Clear**. To exit Notes without recording information, tap **Cancel**.

Note 💕	×
Extremely focused	
loonsch	
Cancel Clear	ок 🔿

#### Sharing

If more than one person has assessed a student, the following rules apply:

- An assessor may view results for all students in his or her class.
- Only the assessor who administered the completed measure may make changes to it.
- Only the first completed and synced administration of a measure will be recorded as official for reporting purposes.
- If the first completed and synced measure is invalidated, the next completed and synced measure becomes official.

# Counting

Kindergarten	First

In Counting, the child counts as high as he or she can in 60 seconds. The numbers 1–120 display on your handheld. While the child counts out loud, beginning at one, tap all numbers skipped or not read in order.

#### Purpose

This measure emphasizes the ability to say counting words, to count forward, and to know that the numbers from 20 to 100 and above are not simply for memorization, but can also be generated by a set of rules important to calculation.

Students make mistakes in predictable places as they learn and extend the counting sequence. The set of words between ten and twenty do not exactly follow the rules, and transitions between decades can be particularly challenging until students have learned the counting words and figured out the pattern.

Counting aloud is a necessary but not sufficient skill. Successful rote counting should not be mistaken for a mastery of numbers, but it is also true that lack of fluency in counting aloud is a clear indicator of difficulty.

#### **Materials**

None

### **Scoring Rules**

Articulation/Dialect Issues: The child is not penalized for imperfect pronunciation due to dialect, articulation, or second language interference.

*Encouragement Prompt:* If the child does not begin counting, encourage him or her by saying, "One ... two ... three ... Now you keep going."

*Self-Corrections*: Tap an item a second time if the child has self-corrected in a reasonable amount of time or if you have accidentally recorded an answer.

#### Administration

1. Choose **Counting** from the Select Measure list on the Student Menu, then tap **Start**.





2. Read the <u>Reminders</u> and <u>Instructions</u> screens, reading all Mr. Say content aloud to the child.





3. Once you are certain the child understands how to accomplish the measure's tasks, say, "Ready? Begin." Immediately tap **Start** when the child responds affirmatively.

STAR	Т				×
e (	eady?	Begin.			
1	2	3	4	5	
6	7	8	9	10	
11	12	13	14	15	
16	17	18	19	20	
21	22	23	24	25	
26	27	28	29	30	
31	32	33	34	35	
36	37	38	39	40	
41	42	43	44	45	
46	47	48	49	50	
:17		+			$\times$
-----	--------	--------	--------	----	----------
e4	Ready?	Begin.			
1	2	3	4	5	<b>A</b>
6	7	8	9	10	
11	12	13	- 14 -	15	
16	17	18	19	20	
21	22	23	24	25	
26	27	28	29	30	
31	32	33	34	35	
36	37	38	39	40	
41	42	43	44	45	
46	47	48	49	50	Ŧ

4. As the child counts as high as he or she can, tap the numbers said incorrectly or skipped entirely.

5. When the screen flashes, be prepared to stop the child if he or she hasn't already reached 100.

:55		++-	•		X
e (	Ready,	begin.			
1	2	3	4	5	
6	7	8	9	10	
11	12	13	- 14 -	15	
16	17	18	19	20	
21	22	23	24	25	
- 26	27	28	- 29	- 30	
31	32	33	34	- 35 -	
- 36	37	38	- 39	40	
41	42	43	44	45	
- 46	47	48	49	50	-

6. When time is up, tap and drag the bracket, placing it after the last number the child said.

:60					Х
e	Stop.	Drag	to last	numbe	r.
1	2	3	4	5	A.
6	7	8	9	10	
11	12	13	14	15	
16	17	18	19	20	
21	22	23	24	25	
26	27	28	29	30	
31	32	33	34	- 35	
- 36	37	38	39_	40	
41	42	43	- 44	45	
46	47	48	49	50	Ŧ

#### **ADMINISTRATION & SCORING**

DON	IE				Х
e (	Stop.	Drag	to last	numbe	r.
1	2	3	4	5	A.
6	7	8	9	10	
11	12	13	14	15	
16	17	28	19	20	
21	22	33	24	25	
26	27	35	29	30	
31	32	43	34	- 35 -	
36	37	48	39	40	
41	42	53	- 44	45	
46	47	58	49	50	T

7. When the timer flashes **Done**, tap it to view the results.

#### **Risk Levels**

Counting is a standardized measure that assesses a child's ability to say the counting words, to count forward, and to know that the numbers from 20 to 100 and above should not simply be remembered but can also be generated by a set of rules that govern calculation.

The End-of-Year Goal for Counting is 83 or more for kindergartners and 118 or more for first graders.

	Counting Risk Levels by Grade and Assessment Period					
Grade	Assessment Period	Deficit (Red)	Emerging (Yellow)	Established (Green)		
	Beginning	19 or less	20–59	60 or more Benchmark Goal		
Kindergarten	Middle	29 or less	30–69	70 or more Benchmark Goal		
	End	42 or less	43–82	83 or more End-of-Year Goal		
	Beginning	42 or less	43–82	83 or more Benchmark Goal		
Grade 1	Middle	49 or less	50–99	100 or more Benchmark Goal		
	End	62 or less	63–117	118 or more End-of-Year Goal		

# **Missing Number**

Kindergarten	First

Missing Number is a 60-second measure that evaluates a student's recognition of basic number patterns and familiarity with printed numbers. There are 50 items on your handheld. You provide the child with the Missing Number visual items from the workbook that correspond to the screen on your handheld. The child should point to each series in each row and tell you what number is missing. Tap only the numbers the child identifies incorrectly or skips entirely.

## Purpose

Students need to recognize basic number patterns and be familiar with printed numbers to develop number sense. To successfully answer these items, students must recognize the two printed symbols as representations of numbers, identify the number that would complete the sequence, and produce the name for that number. Students who can quickly and accurately identify which number is missing recognize and make use of a fundamental pattern within the number sequence. Students who proceed more slowly may have to go through a manual strategy to fill in the blank, perhaps counting from a known referent up to the numbers in question (for example, counting from one to six to answer what is missing in 5, \_\_, 7). Other students may not yet grasp the relationships between numbers.

# **Materials**

The Missing Number forms from the Screening and Progress Monitoring Student Materials

# **Scoring Rules**

Articulation/Dialect Issues: The child is not penalized for imperfect pronunciation due to dialect, articulation, or second language interference.

*Discontinue Rule:* You will be prompted to discontinue this measure if the child scores incorrect on the first five items.

*First Mistake Rule:* The first time the child reads the numbers but does not say the missing number, say, "Remember to tell me which number is missing."

*Reading Order Prompt:* If the child is obviously reading from right to left, instruct him or her to read left to right.

*Self-Corrections*: Tap an item a second time if the child has self-corrected in a reasonable amount of time or if you have accidentally recorded an answer.

:47	Form 2	X
🕐 Ready? Begin.	)	
🔟 3, <u>4</u> , 5	3, <u>4</u> , 5	
🔟 17, <u>18</u> , 19	17, <u>18</u> , 19	
🔟 16, <u>17</u> , 18	16, <u>17</u> , 18	
🔟 3, <u>4</u> ,5	3, <u>4</u> , 5	
🔟 17, <u>18</u> , 19	17, <u>18</u> , 19	
🗵 <u>16, 17, 18</u>	16, <u>17</u> , 18	
<u>× 3, 4, 5</u>	3, 4, 5	
🔟 17, <u>18</u> , 19	17, <u>18</u> , 19	
🔟 16, <u>17</u> , 18	16, <u>17</u> , 18	
🔟 17, <u>18</u> , 19	17, <u>18</u> , 19	-

Skipped Row: Tap the X at the beginning of any row a child skips. This does not affect scoring.

*Three-Second Hesitation:* If the child hesitates three seconds on an item, score it as incorrect. Point to the next series and ask, "What number is missing?"

*Written Answer Rule:* Writing utensils should be cleared from the area before beginning this measure. If the child does write the answer, say, "Let's do this without a pencil." Point to the item again and ask, "What number is missing?"

# Administration

1. Choose **Missing Number** from the Select Measure list on the Student Menu.



2. Verify that you have all necessary materials for the measure, then tap Start.



3. Read the <u>Reminders</u> screen and follow the <u>Practice and Instructions</u> screens, reading all Mr. Say content aloud to the child.



4. Once you are certain the child understands how to accomplish the measure's tasks, say, "Ready? Begin." Immediately tap **Start** when the child responds affirmatively.

ST.	AR	T			2	Scr	eer	ning	X
C		Rea	dy?	Begi	<b>n</b> .	)			
X	13,	14,	15		6,	7,	8		A.
X	1,	2,	3		18,	19,	20		
X	14,	<u>15</u> ,	16		<u>10</u> ,	11,	12		
X	0,	1,	2		17,	18,	<u>19</u>		
×	2,	3,	4		<u>17</u> ,	18,	19		
X	Ζ,	8,	9		12,	13,	<u>14</u>		
X	17,	<u>18</u> ,	19		15,	16,	<u>17</u>		
X	3,	4,	5		<u>10</u> ,	11,	12		
X	З,	<u>4,</u>	5		0,	1,	2		
X	7,	8.	9		3.	4,	5		-

5. As the child identifies the numbers missing from the serial patterns across each row, tap the numbers that he or she identifies incorrectly or skips entirely.

:47	Form 2	X
💽 Ready? Begin.	)	
🔟 3, <u>4</u> , 5	3, <u>4</u> , 5	
🔟 17, <u>18</u> , 19	17, <u>18</u> , 19	
🔟 16, <u>17</u> , 18	16, <u>17</u> , 18	
🔟 3, <u>4</u> ,5	3, <u>4</u> , 5	
🔟 <u>17, 18</u> , 19	17, <u>18</u> , 19	
🔟 <u>16, 17</u> , 18	16, <u>17</u> , 18	
<u>× 3, 4, 5</u>	3, 4, 5	
🔟 17, <u>18</u> , 19	17, <u>18</u> , 19	
🔟 16, <u>17</u> , 18	16, <u>17</u> , 18	
🔟 17, <u>18</u> , 19	17, <u>18</u> , 19	-

6. When the screen flashes, be prepared to stop the child if he or she hasn't already finished.

:55		Form 2	Х
C Rea	ıdy? Begin.		
🔟 3, <u>4</u> , 5		3, <u>4</u> , 5	<b>A</b> .
🔟 17, <u>18</u>	, 19	17, <u>18</u> , 19	
🔟 16, <u>17</u>	, 18	16, <u>17</u> , 18	
🗵 3 <u>, 4</u> , 5		3, <u>4,</u> 5	
🔟 17, <u>18</u>	, 19	17, <u>18</u> , 19	
🗵 <u>16, 17</u>	. 18	16, <u>17</u> , 18	
<u>🗙 3, 4, 5</u>		3, 4, 5	
🔟 17, <u>18</u>	, 19	17, <u>18</u> , 19	
🔟 16, <u>17</u>	, 18	16, <u>17</u> , 18	
🗵 17, <u>18</u>	, 19	17, <u>18</u> , 19	-

7. When time is up, tap and drag the bracket, placing it after the last number the child identified.

:60	Form 2 🗵
💽 Stop. Drag	g to last number.
🔟 3, <u>4</u> ,5	3, <u>4</u> , 5 🔛
🔟 17, <u>18</u> , 19	17, <u>18</u> , 19
🔟 16, <u>17</u> , 18	16, <u>17</u> , 18
🔟 3, <u>4</u> ,5	3, <u>4</u> , 5
🔟 17, <u>18</u> , 19	17, <u>18</u> , 19
🗵 <u>16, 17</u> , 18	16, <u>17</u> , 18
🛛 <del>3, <u>4</u>, 5</del>	<del>3, <u>4</u>, 5</del>
🔟 17, <u>18</u> , 19 _	17, <u>18</u> , 19
🔟 16, <u>17</u> , 18	16, <u>17</u> , 18
🔟 17, <u>18</u> , 19 <sup>¶</sup>	17, <u>18</u> , 19 🛛 💌

DONE	Form 2 🗵
🔮 Stop. Drag	g ] to last number.
🔟 3, <u>4</u> ,5	3, <u>4</u> , 5 📉
🔟 17, <u>18</u> , 19	17, <u>18</u> , 19
🔟 16, <u>17</u> , 18	16, <u>17</u> , 18
🔟 3, <u>4</u> ,5	3, <u>4</u> , 5
🔟 <u>17, 18,</u> 19	17, <u>18</u> , 19
🔟 <u>16, 17, 18</u>	16, <u>17</u> , 18
🛛 <del>3, <u>4</u>, 5</del>	<del>-3, <u>4</u>, 5</del>
🔟 17, <u>18</u> , 19 🗧 👘	17, <u>18</u> , 19
🔟 16, <u>17</u> , 18 📘	16, <u>17</u> , 18
🔟 17, <u>18</u> , 19 <sup>=</sup>	17, <u>18</u> , 19 📃

8. When the timer flashes **Done**, tap it to view the results.

## **Risk Levels**

Missing Number evaluates a student's recognition of basic number patterns and familiarity with printed numbers as part of the ongoing development of number sense. Students who can quickly and accurately identify which number is missing recognize and make use of a fundamental pattern within the number sequence.

The End-of-Year Goal for Missing Number is 13 or more for kindergartners and 23 or more for first graders.

	Missing Number Risk Levels by Grade and Assessment Period						
Grade	Assessment Period	Deficit (Red)	Emerging (Yellow)	Established (Green)			
	Beginning	0	1–6	7 or more Benchmark Goal			
Kindergarten	Middle	2 or less	3–9	10 or more Benchmark Goal			
	End	3 or less	4–12	13 or more End-of-Year Goal			
	Beginning	4 or less	5–19	20 or more Benchmark Goal			
Grade 1	Middle	5 or less	6–20	21 or more Benchmark Goal			
	End	7 or less	8–22	23 or more End-of-Year Goal			

# **Next Number**

Kindergarten	First

In Next Number, the assessor says a number and the child answers by providing the number that comes after it. There are 84 items on your handheld. Tap only the numbers the child identifies incorrectly or skips entirely. This measure lasts 60 seconds.

#### Purpose

Students should have meaningful referents for numbers and should not rely on rote understanding. Fluidly counting or moving up by one is akin to adding one to a number, suggesting that it is a strong precursor to adding numbers.

Students who quickly and accurately produce the next number likely have a strong understanding of the relationship and order of numbers. They may even have a mental number line on which they can quickly move. Other students may have to rerun the counting sequence in their head before giving an answer (for example, counting up from 30 to determine what comes after 36). These children may remember the words only when said in sequence but lack full comprehension of the words' meaning.

#### **Materials**

None

#### **Scoring Rules**

Articulation/Dialect Issues: The child is not penalized for imperfect pronunciation due to dialect, articulation, or second language interference.

*Discontinue Rule:* You will be prompted to discontinue this measure if the child scores incorrect on the first five items.

*First Mistake Rule:* The first time the child repeats the number, say, "Remember to tell me the number that comes after the number I say."

*Self-Corrections*: Tap an item a second time if the child has self-corrected in a reasonable amount of time or if you have accidentally recorded an answer.

*Three-Second Hesitation:* If the child hesitates 3 seconds on an item, score it as incorrect and move on by asking, "OK, what comes after [x]?"

# Administration

1. Choose **Next Number** from the Select Measure list on the Student Menu, then tap **Start**.





2. Read the <u>Reminders</u> screen and follow the <u>Practice and Instructions</u> screens, reading all Mr. Say content aloud to the child.





3. Once you are certain the child understands how to accomplish the measure's tasks, say, "Ready? Begin." Immediately tap **Start** when the child responds affirmatively.

START		Form 2	$\times$
Ready	? Begin.		
9, <u>10</u>	21, <u>22</u>	54, <u>55</u>	
3, <u>4</u>	73, <u>74</u>	18, <u>19</u>	
4, <u>5</u>	67, <u>68</u>	8, <u>9</u>	
14, <u>15</u>	30, <u>31</u>	15, <u>16</u>	
36, <u>37</u>	0, <u>1</u>	27, <u>28</u>	
91, <u>92</u>	12, <u>13</u>	89, <u>90</u>	
42, <u>43</u>	20, <u>21</u>	99, <u>100</u>	
24, <u>25</u>	6, <u>7</u>	33, <u>34</u>	
17, <u>18</u>	1, <u>2</u>	11, <u>12</u>	
48, <u>49</u>	9, <u>10</u>	15, <u>16</u>	•

:32	+++	Form 2	X
Ready	/? Begin.		
3, <u>4</u>	3, <u>4</u>	3, <u>4</u>	14.
17, <u>18</u>	17, <u>18</u>	17, <u>18</u>	
16, <u>17</u>	16, <u>17</u>	16, <u>17</u>	
3, <u>4</u>	3, <u>4</u>	3, <u>4</u>	
17, <u>18</u>	17, <u>18</u>	17, <u>18</u>	
16, <u>17</u>	16, <u>17</u>	16, <u>17</u>	
3, <u>4</u>	3, <u>4</u>	3, <u>4</u>	
17, <u>18</u>	17, <u>18</u>	17, <u>18</u>	
16, <u>17</u>	16, <u>17</u>	16, <u>17</u>	
17, <u>18</u>	17, <u>18</u>	17, <u>18</u>	-

4. Tell the child the number that is not underlined. As the child responds with the number that follows, tap any numbers he or she identifies incorrectly.

5. When the screen flashes, be prepared to stop the child if he or she hasn't already finished.

:55	+	Form 2	X
C Ready	r, begin.		
3, <u>4</u>	3, <u>4</u>	3, <u>4</u>	
17, <u>18</u>	17, <u>18</u>	17, <u>18</u>	
16, <u>17</u>	16, <u>17</u>	16, <u>17</u>	
3, <u>4</u>	3, <u>4</u>	3, <u>4</u>	
17, <u>18</u>	17, <u>18</u>	17, <u>18</u>	
16, <u>17</u>	16, <u>17</u>	16, <u>17</u>	
3, <u>4</u>	3, <u>4</u>	3, <u>4</u>	
17, <u>18</u>	17, <u>18</u>	17, <u>18</u>	
16, <u>17</u>	16, <u>17</u>	16, <u>17</u>	
17, 18	17.18	17.18	-

6. When time is up, tap and drag the bracket, placing it after the last number the child identified.

:60		Form 2	Х
C Stop.	Drag	to last numbe	er.
3, <u>4</u>	3, <u>4</u>	3, <u>4</u>	
17, <u>18</u>	17, <u>18</u>	17, <u>18</u>	
16, <u>17</u>	16, <u>17</u>	16, <u>17</u>	
3, <u>4</u>	3, <u>4</u>	3, <u>4</u>	
17, <u>18</u>	17, <u>18</u>	17, <u>18</u>	
16, <u>17</u>	16, <u>17</u>	16, <u>17</u>	
3, <u>4</u>	3, <u>4</u>	3, <u>4</u>	
17, <u>18</u>	17, <u>18</u>	17, <u>18</u>	
16, <u>17</u>	16, <u>17</u>	16, <u>17</u>	
17, <u>18</u>	17, <u>18</u>	17, <u>18</u> <sup>•</sup>	-

#### **ADMINISTRATION & SCORING**

DONE		Form 2 🗵
C Stop.	Drag	to last number.
3, <u>4</u>	3, <u>4</u>	3, <u>4</u>
17, <u>18</u>	17, <u>18</u>	17, <u>18</u>
16, <u>17</u>	16, <u>17</u>	<b>1</b> 6, <u>17</u>
3, <u>4</u>	3, <u>4</u>	3, <u>4</u>
17, <u>18</u>	17, <u>18</u>	17, <u>18</u>
16, <u>17</u>	16, <u>17</u>	16, <u>17</u>
3, <u>4</u>	3, <u>4</u>	3, <u>4</u>
17, <u>18</u>	17, <u>18</u>	17, <u>18</u>
16, <u>17</u>	16, <u>17</u>	16, <u>17</u>
17, <u>18</u>	17, <u>18</u>	17, <u>18</u> 🗖 🔽

7. When the timer flashes **Done**, tap it to view the results.

## **Risk Levels**

Next Number is a measure where the assessor says a number and the child answers by providing the number that comes after it. Strong mathematicians have meaningful referents for numbers and do not rely on rote understanding and strategies. Students who quickly and accurately produce the next number likely have a strong understanding of the relationship and order of numbers.

The End-of-Year Goal for Next Number is 23 or more. This measure is not required for kindergartners.

Next Number Risk Levels by Grade and Assessment Period						
Grade	Assessment Period	Deficit (Red)	Emerging (Yellow)	Established (Green)		
Grade 1	Beginning	8 or less	9–16	17 or more Benchmark Goal		
	Middle	9 or less	10–19	20 or more Benchmark Goal		
	End	10 or less	11–22	23 or more End-of-Year Goal		

# **Number Facts**

Kindergarten	First

Number Facts is a 60-second measure that evaluates a child's knowledge of basic arithmetic. There are 40 problems on your handheld. You ask the child the problems and tap the **Correct Answer** button or **Incorrect**, depending on the child's answer.

#### Purpose

Quick retrieval of the basic number facts, or combinations, is fundamentally important and may predict achievement. From a practical point of view, quick retrieval means that children get the answer quickly and do not have to expend much mental energy on calculation. Quick retrieval may result from rote memory, from fluency with rapid counting, or from an understanding of basic principles such as the commutativity of addition.

## **Materials**

None

## **Scoring Rules**

Articulation/Dialect Issues: The child is not penalized for imperfect pronunciation due to dialect, articulation, or second language interference.

*Discontinue Rule:* You will be prompted to discontinue this measure if the child scores incorrect on the first five items.

Self-Corrections: Tap an item a second time if the child has self-corrected in a reasonable amount of time or if you have accidentally recorded an answer.

*Three-Second Hesitation:* If the child hesitates for three seconds and does not appear to be working out the problem, score it as incorrect and present the next item.

# Administration

1. Choose **Number Facts** from the Select Measure list on the Student Menu, then tap **Start**.





2. Read the <u>Reminders</u> screen and follow the <u>Practice and Instructions</u> screens, reading all Mr. Say content aloud to the child.





3. Once you are certain the child understands how to accomplish the measure's tasks, ask the problem, then tap **Start**.



4. Tap **Incorrect** or the **Correct Answer** button, depending on the child's answers.



- Once you select an answer, the next question appears.
- A forward arrow appears only if you go back to change an answer. Tap the back arrow to do so.
- 5. The screen flashes as a warning when only 5 seconds remain.



6. When the timer flashes **Done**, ask the final problem on the screen, if you have not already, and allow the child to answer. Tap **Incorrect** or the **Correct Answer** button, depending on the child's answer.

#### **ADMINISTRATION & SCORING**

7. Tap **Done** to view the results.



## **Risk Levels**

Number Facts is a measure that evaluates a child's knowledge of basic arithmetic. Quickly retrieving basic number facts, or combinations, means the student does not expend much mental energy on calculation.

The End-of-Year Goal for Number Facts is 11 or more. This measure is not required for kindergartners.

Number Facts Risk Levels by Grade and Assessment Period						
Grade	Assessment Period	Deficit (Red)	Emerging (Yellow)	Established (Green)		
Grade 1	Beginning	1 or less	2–5	6 or more Benchmark Goal		
	Middle	4 or less	5–7	8 or more Benchmark Goal		
	End	6 or less	7–10	11 or more End-of-Year Goal		

# **Number Identification**

Kindergarten	First

Number Identification is a 60-second measure that gauges a child's ability to identify numerals. There will be 70 numbers on your handheld. You provide the child with the Number Identification visual items from the workbook that correspond to the screen on your handheld. Tap only the numbers the child identifies incorrectly or skips entirely.

#### Purpose

An understanding of the written symbols that represent numbers is a skill on which all of written mathematics depends. Successfully reading numerals containing two or more digits also requires an understanding of the relationships of various digits. Children must recognize multi-digit numbers as composites of ones and tens (i.e., *21* not as *two one*, but *twenty-one*). Performing well on this measure demonstrates familiarity and fluency with a wide range of one- and two-digit numbers.

## **Materials**

The Number Identification forms from the Screening and Progress Monitoring Student Materials

# **Scoring Rules**

Articulation/Dialect Issues: The child is not penalized for imperfect pronunciation due to dialect, articulation, or second language interference.

*Discontinue Rule:* You will be prompted to discontinue this measure if the child scores incorrect on the first five items.

*First Mistake Rule:* The first time the child provides an answer other than the name of a number, say, "Remember to tell me the name of each number."

*Reading Order Prompt:* If the child is obviously reading from right to left, instruct him or her to read left to right.

*Self-Corrections*: Tap an item a second time if the child has self-corrected in a reasonable amount of time or if you have accidentally recorded an answer.

Skipped Row: Tap the X at the beginning of any row a child skips, it will not affect scoring.

	:17			1	++	For	m 2	Х
e	K	Read	y?B	egin				
$\mathbf{X}$	2	10	31	15	20	84	13	٠
$\times$	9	40	65	17	46	5	32	
X	14	96	-1-	43	57	4	37	-
$\mathbf{X}$	49	12	34	6	3	16	41	
$\mathbf{X}$	67	44	19	15	33	94	14	
$\times$	9	6	78	0	31	53	11	
$\mathbf{X}$	8	20	93	87	6	5	1	
$\times$	8	42	14	35	48	10	59	
$\mathbf{X}$	2	43	62	16	76	13	18	
X	15	32	89	7	4	45	17	1

*Three-Second Hesitation:* If the child hesitates three seconds on an item, score it as incorrect. Point to the next number and ask, "What number is this?"

#### Administration

1. Choose **Number Identification** from the Select Measure list on the Student Menu.



2. Verify that you have all necessary materials for the measure, then tap Start.



3. Read the <u>Reminders</u> screen and follow the <u>Practice and Instructions</u> screens, reading all Mr. Say content aloud to the child.



4. Once you are certain the child understands how to accomplish the measure's tasks, say, "Ready? Begin." Immediately tap **Start** when the child responds affirmatively.

51	START 🛛 🛛 Form 2 🗵									
e		Read	y?B	egin						
$\mathbf{X}$	2	10	31	15	20	84	13	<i>.</i>		
$\mathbf{X}$	9	40	65	17	46	5	32			
$\mathbf{X}$	14	96	1	43	57	4	37			
$\mathbf{X}$	49	12	34	6	3	16	41			
$\mathbf{X}$	67	44	19	15	33	94	14			
$\times$	9	6	78	0	31	53	11			
$\mathbf{X}$	8	20	93	87	6	5	1			
×	8	42	14	35	48	10	59			
$\mathbf{X}$	2	43	62	16	76	13	18			
$\mathbf{X}$	15	32	89	7	4	45	17			

5. As the child reads from left to right across each row, tap the numbers that he or she identifies incorrectly or skips entirely. Watch the diamond counter for three-second hesitations.

	:29			+		Form 2		
e	K	Read	ly? B	egin				
$\mathbf{X}$	2	10	31	15	20	84	13	
X	9	40	65	17	46	5	32	
X	14	96	1	43	57	4	37	-
X	49	12	34	6	3	16	41	
X	67	44	19	15	33	94	14	
$\times$	9	6	78	0	31	53	11	
$\mathbf{X}$	8	20	93	87	6	5	1	
$\mathbf{X}$	8	42	14	35	48	10	59	
$\mathbf{X}$	2	43	62	16	76	13	18	
$\mathbf{X}$	15	32	89	7	4	45	17	-

6. When the screen flashes, be prepared to stop the child if he or she has not already finished.

	:55			++		or	m 2	X
C	4	Read	y?B	egin.	)			
$\mathbf{X}$	2	10	31	15	20	84	13	10.
$\mathbf{X}$	9	40	65	17	46	5	32	
×	-14	96	1	-43	57	4	37	_
$\mathbf{X}$	49	12	34	6	3	16	41	
$\mathbf{X}$	67	44	19	15	33	94	14	
$\mathbf{X}$	9	6	78	0	31	53	11	
X	8	20	93	87	6	5	1	
$\mathbf{X}$	8	42	14	35	48	10	59	
X	2	43	62	16	76	13	18	
X	15	32	89	7	4	45	17	-

7. When time is up, tap and drag the bracket, placing it after the last number the child identified.



8. When the timer flashes **Done**, tap it to view the results.



#### **Risk Levels**

Number Identification is a measure that gauges a child's ability to identify numerals. Successfully reading numerals containing two or more digits also requires an understanding of the relationship among the various digits, so performing well on this measure demonstrates familiarity and fluency.

The End-of-Year Goal for Number Identification is 31 or more for kindergartners and 65 or more for first graders.

I	Number Identification Risk Levels by Grade and Assessment Period									
Grade	Assessment Period	Deficit (Red)	Emerging (Yellow)	Established (Green)						
	Beginning	2 or less	3–19	20 or more Benchmark Goal						
Kindergarten	Middle	8 or less	9–24	25 or more Benchmark Goal						
	End	13 or less	14–30	31 or more End-of-Year Goal						
	Beginning	13 or less	14–43	44 or more Benchmark Goal						
Grade 1	Middle	18 or less	19–53	54 or more Benchmark Goal						
	End	23 or less	24–64	65 or more End-of-Year Goal						

• •

# **Quantity Discrimination**

Kindergarten	First

Quantity Discrimination is a 60-second measure that identifies a child's ability to comprehend the quantitative value of a number. There are 60 sets of numbers arranged on your handheld's screen and on the Quantity Discrimination visual items from the Workbook. You provide the child with the Quantity Discrimination visual items that correspond to the screen on your handheld. The child should identify the number in the pair with the highest value. Tap only the pairs the student identifies incorrectly or skips entirely.

# Purpose

Comparing the magnitude of numbers is a fundamental number concept. Within a given item, a student must recognize the written numerals and understand that the 8 represents something that can be more than or bigger than that which is represented by the 2. Understanding quantity is the first step to dealing with the fundamental questions of "How much?" It has also been shown to be one of the strongest predictors of mathematical performance.

## **Materials**

The Quantity Discrimination forms from the Screening and Progress Monitoring Student Materials

# **Scoring Rules**

Articulation/Dialect Issues: The child is not penalized for imperfect pronunciation due to dialect, articulation, or second language interference.

*Discontinue Rule:* You will be prompted to discontinue this measure if the child scores incorrect on the first five items.

*First Mistake Rule:* The first time the child reads both numbers, say, "Remember to tell me which number is bigger."

Point or Say Rule: The child is correct whether he or she points to or says the correct answer.

*Self-Corrections*: Tap an item a second time if the child has self-corrected in a reasonable amount of time or if you have accidentally recorded an answer.

#### **ADMINISTRATION & SCORING**

:	:29		++		Form 2		×	
Ready? Begin.								
×-	8	3	-11	17	- 2 -	-5-	140	
X	2	Z	<u>13</u>	9	6	<u>8</u>		
X	7	4	12	<u>16</u>	<u>6</u>	4		
X	1	<u>3</u>	<u>15</u>	2	0	<u>8</u>		
X	<u>10</u>	0	4	<u>16</u>	<u>8</u>	5		
$\mathbf{X}$	3	4	<u>18</u>	7	6	2		
X	1	0	14	<u>19</u>	5	2		
X	3	<u>5</u>	<u>15</u>	4	4	<u>8</u>		
X	<u>4</u>	0	3	<u>12</u>	Z	1		
X	3	8	<u>17</u>	8	4	<u>9</u>	-	

Skipped Row: Tap the X at the beginning of any row a child skips, it will not affect scoring.

*Three-Second Hesitation:* If the child hesitates 3 seconds on an item, score it as incorrect. Point to the next pair and ask, "Which is bigger?"

#### **Administration**

1. Choose **Quantity Discrimination** from the Select Measure list on the Student Menu.



2. Verify that you have all necessary <u>materials</u> for the measure, then tap **Start**.



3. Read the <u>Reminders</u> screen and follow the <u>Practice and Instructions</u> screens, reading all Mr. Say content aloud to the child.



4. Once you are certain the child understands how to accomplish the measure's tasks, say, "Ready? Begin." Immediately tap **Start** when the child responds affirmatively.

START Form 2 🗵								
e	Re	eady	? Begii	n.				
X	<u>8</u>	3	11	<u>17</u>	2	5		
X	2	Z	<u>13</u>	9	6	<u>8</u>		
X	<u>7</u>	4	12	<u>16</u>	<u>6</u>	4		
X	1	<u>3</u>	<u>15</u>	2	0	<u>8</u>		
X	<u>10</u>	0	4	<u>16</u>	<u>8</u>	5		
X	3	<u>4</u>	<u>18</u>	7	6	<u>9</u>		
X	1	0	14	<u>19</u>	5	2		
X	3	<u>5</u>	<u>15</u>	4	4	<u>8</u>		
X	<u>4</u>	0	3	<u>12</u>	Z	1		
$\times$	3	8	17	8	4	9		

5. As the child discerns the higher quantity number in each pair across the rows, tap the numbers that he or she identifies incorrectly or skips entirely.

:	49		+	+	Forr	n 2.	X	
Ready? Begin.								
X-	8	3	11	17	2	-5-	16.	
X	2	<u>7</u>	<u>13</u>	9	6	<u>8</u>		
X	<u>7</u>	4	12	16	<u>6</u>	4		
X	1	<u>3</u>	<u>15</u>	2	0	<u>8</u>		
X	<u>10</u>	0	4	<u>16</u>	<u>8</u>	5		
$\times$	3	4	<u>18</u>	7	6	9		
X	1	0	14	<u>19</u>	<u>5</u>	2		
X	3	<u>5</u>	<u>15</u>	4	4	<u>8</u>		
X	4	0	3	<u>12</u>	Z	1		
$\times$	3	<u>8</u>	<u>17</u>	8	4	<u>9</u>	T	

6. When the screen flashes, be prepared to stop the child if he or she has not already finished.



7. When time is up, tap and drag the bracket, placing it after the last number the child identified.

-	60				Forn	n 2	X
e	S	top.	Drag	1] t	o last i	numt	er.
X	8	3	- 11	17	2	5	
$\times$	2	7	<u>13</u>	9	6	<u>8</u>	
X	<u>7</u>	4	12	16	<u>6</u>	4	
$\mathbf{X}$	1	3	<u>15</u>	2	0	8	
X	<u>10</u>	0	4	<u>16</u>	<u>8</u>	5	
$\mathbf{X}$	3	4	<u>18</u>	7	6	<u>9</u>	
$\mathbf{X}$	1	0	14	<u>19</u>	5	2	
X	3	5_	<u>15</u>	4	4	<u>8</u>	
X	4	0	3	<u>12</u>	Z	1	
X	3	8	17	8	4	9	-

8. When the timer flashes **Done**, tap it to view the results.

Ď	ONE				Forn	n 2	Х
e	St	top.	Drag	1 <b>t</b> o	o last n	umbo	er.
×-	8	-3-	11	17	2	-5	140
X	2	Z	<u>13</u>	9	6	<u>8</u>	
X	7	4	12	16	<u>6</u>	4	
X	1	<u>3</u>	<u>15</u>	2	0	<u>8</u>	
X	<u>10</u>	0	4	<u>16</u>	<u>8</u>	5	
$\mathbf{X}$	3	4	<u>18</u>	7	6	<u>9</u>	
X	1	0	14	<u>19</u>	5	2	
X	3	5_	<u>15</u>	4	4	<u>8</u>	
X	4	0	3	<u>12</u>	Z	1	
X	3	8	<u>17</u>	8	4	9	-

#### **Risk Levels**

Quantity Discrimination is a measure that determines a child's ability to comprehend the quantitative value of a number. The child identifies the number in the pair with the highest value.

The End-of-Year Goal for Quantity Discrimination is 25 or more for kindergartners and 40 or more for first graders.

Q	Quantity Discrimination Risk Levels by Grade and Assessment Period									
Grade	Assessment Period	Deficit (Red)	Emerging (Yellow)	Established (Green)						
	Beginning	4 or less	5–19	20 or more Benchmark Goal						
Kindergarten	Middle	6 or less	7–22	23 or more Benchmark Goal						
	End	8 or less	9–24	25 or more End-of-Year Goal						
	Beginning	14 or less	15–29	30 or more Benchmark Goal						
Grade 1	Middle	16 or less	17–34	35 or more Benchmark Goal						
	End	19 or less	20–39	40 or more End-of-Year Goal						

• • •

# Activities

As is the case with completed Diagnostic Interviews, completed Screening measures map assessment data to specific instructional activities. These activities still fall under one of the five skill areas of mathematics defined in Diagnostic Interviews: Counting, Addition, Subtraction, Multiplication, and Written. In Screening, though, the particular activities advised are also sensitive to the student's Risk Level on each measure.

Kindergarten – Beginning of Year								
	Deficit	Emerging	Established					
Counting	Count to 20 (#1) Catch My Mistake (#4)	Count to 20 (#1) Number After (#5) Number Before (#6) Count Backward (#7)	Count to 100 (#2) Count Backward (#7) Count by Tens from 10 (#8)					
Missing Number	Count to 20 (#1) Catch My Mistake (#4)	Count to 20 (#1) Number After (#5) Number Before (#6)	Count to 100 (#2) Number After (#5) Number Before (#6) Count Backward (#7)					
Number Identification	Count to 20 (#10) Write One-Digit Numerals (#61)	Write Two-Digit Numerals (#63)	Write Three-Digit Numerals (#64) Identify Three-Digit Numerals (#67)					
Quantity Discrimination	Count to 20 (#1) Compare Magnitude Dots (#17)	Compare Magnitude (#3)	Create & Identify Groups of 10 (#69)					

Kindergarten – Middle and End of Year			
	Deficit	Emerging	Established
Counting	Count Backward (#7) Give Me (#12)	Count to 100 (#2) Count by Tens from 10 (#8)	Count by Tens, Running Start (#9) Count Backward by Tens (#45)
Missing Number	Number After (#5) Number Before (#6)	Count to 100 (#2) Count Backward (#7)	Count to 100 (#2) Number After (#5) Number Before (#6) Count Backward (#7)

# **ADMINISTRATION & SCORING**

Kindergarten – Middle and End of Year			
	Deficit	Emerging	Established
Number Identification	Identify One-Digit Errors (#62)	Identify Two-Digit Errors (#66)	Write Three-Digit Numerals (#64) Identify Three-Digit Errors (#67)
Quantity Discrimination	Compare Magnitude (#3)	Create & Identify Groups of 10 (#69)	Create & Identify Groups of 10 (#69)

Grade 1 – Beginning of Year				
	Deficit	Emerging	Established	
Counting	Count to 20 (#1) Catch My Mistake (#4) Number After (#5)	Count to 100 (#2) Number After (#5) Number Before (#6)	Count to 100 (#2) Count Backward (#7) Count by Tens, Running Start (#9)	
Missing Number	Count to 20 (#1) Catch My Mistake (#4)	Count to 100 (#2) Number After (#5) Number Before (#6)	Count by Tens, Running Start (#9)	
Next Number	Count to 20 (#1) Catch My Mistake (#4) Number After (#5) Number Before (#6) Count to 100 (#2)	Count to 100 (#2) Number After (#5) Number Before (#6) Count Backward (#7)	Count to 100 (#2) Number After (#5) Number Before (#6) Count Backward (#7)	
Number Facts	Count to 20 (#1) Add by Counting All, Chips (#14) Separate From, Chips (#33)	Small Number Addition, Chips (#19) Small Number Subtraction, Chips (#35)	Adding & the Zero Rule (#23) Adding & the Order Rule (#25) Subtracting & the Zero Rule (#37)	
Number Identification	Count to 20 (#1) Write One-Digit Numerals (#61)	Write Two-Digit Numerals (#63)	Write Three-Digit Numerals (#64) Identify Three-Digit Errors (#67)	
Quantity Discrimination	Count to 20 (#1) Compare Magnitude Dots (#17)	Compare Magnitude (#3)	Create & Identify Groups of 10 (#69)	

Grade 1 – Middle and End of Year				
	Deficit	Emerging	Established	
Counting	Count to 100 (#2) Give Me (#12)	Count Backward (#7) Count by Tens from 10 (#8)	Count Backward by Tens (#45)	
Missing Number	Count to 100 (#2) Number After (#5) Number Before (#6)	Count by Tens from 10 (#8)	Count by Tens, Running Start (#9)	
Next Number	Count to 20 (#1) Catch My Mistake (#4) Number After (#5) Number Before (#6) Count to 100 (#2)	Count to 100 (#2) Number After (#5) Number Before (#6) Count Backward (#7)	Count to 100 (#2) Number After (#5) Number Before (#6) Count Backward (#7)	
Number Facts	Predict, Count All (#18) Predict, Separate From, Chips (#34)	Small Number Addition (#20) Small Number Subtraction (#36)	Find the Same Number Rule (#39)	
Number Identification	Identify One-Digit Errors (#62)	Identify Two-Digit Errors (#66)	Identify Four-Digit Errors (#68)	
Quantity Discrimination	Compare Magnitude (#3)	Create & Identify Groups of 10 (#69)	Create & Identify Groups of 10 (#69)	

All recommended activities, whether the source of the recommendation was a Diagnostic Interview or a Screening, show on the ACT section of the Student Menu. Each time an activity is recommended, it receives a star. Activities that are highly recommended, or have the most stars, appear closer to the top of the list. These stars also appear on the Web in the Activities section; however, on the Web, only the top five are visible.



#### **ADMINISTRATION & SCORING**



The full details of each of these activities, including any necessary blackline masters, are printed in the *Activities Guide* available with the mCLASS:Math kit.

# The mCLASS® Web Site

The secure mCLASS: Home Web site provides password-protected access to class and student reports of assessments conducted on the handheld. Over the Internet, results can only be viewed, not edited or deleted.

Results for your students only appear on the mCLASS Web site when you have:

- Used your handheld to conduct interviews and record the results
- Performed a synchronization with your handheld at a designated mCLASS Sync Station

## **Types of Reports**

- The Class Report shows each student's scores and percentiles for each measure during the selected benchmark window.
- The Student Report provides one student's scores and percentiles for a selected measure during all benchmark windows, showing the overall progress of the chosen student.
- The Measure Detail Reports present one student's Screening and Progress Monitoring scores and percentiles for the selected measure.

#### Logging In

- 1. To access the Web reports, locate any computer with an Internet connection. This does not have to be one of the designated Sync Stations in your school.
- 2. Open your Web browser and go to <u>https://www.mclasshome.com</u>.
- 3. At the Welcome page, type your assigned user name and password, then click Enter.

Welcome	
Login	
User Name	- HotSync™ and Save! Make sure to backup your data. If you don't have time to HotSync™, then save to your backup chip.
	- Charge it! Keep your handheld device charged to avoid losing any assessment data.
Need help logging in? Click	
	Copyright © 2000-2005 Wireless Generation, Inc. All rights reserved. Read our Terms and Conditions of Use 1 Website Privacy Policy.
	Read our <u>Terms and Conditions of Use</u>   <u>website Privacy Policy</u> .

#### Accessing mCLASS:Math

After signing in, you see a home page for the mCLASS products to which you have access.

mCLASS <sup>™</sup> Home	Current School Year	€CLASS
My Assessments	Support & Resource Center Get Help, Install Software	Sync Status Your last sync on 03/02/2005 at 10:27 AM EST was successful.
	My Settings Create and Update Classes & Groups Update Personal Information Enter	Tue Jul 12 2005 Attention Summer School Users - Remember to hotsync your handhelds this summer! more Thu Jun 02 2005 Steps to ensure a smooth transition into the new school year more Thu Mar 24 2005
		Keep Your Palm Battery Charged! more
Copyi Re	right © 2000-2005 Wireless Generation, Inc. All rights res ad our <u>Terms and Conditions of Use</u>   <u>Website Privacy Pol</u>	erved. I <u>cv</u> .

If you have forgotten your password, click the **Need help logging in?** link. If you experience issues, contact your school's technology department or contact Wireless Generation's Customer Care at (800) 823-1969 and select option 3.

To view the mCLASS:Math results for your classes, click the **Enter** button next to the mCLASS:Math logo in the My Assessments section.

# Navigating mCLASS:Math Web Reports

Every Web report has navigational features that help you to find and view class, student, and measure information.

## The Banner

The banner displays the name of the report you are viewing. On Class Reports, the banner also will show the name of the class; on Student and Measure Detail Reports, the banner also will show the child's name.

In addition, the banner contains a navigation bar that shows the path you took to arrive at the report you are viewing.



If you click an underlined report name, you will be taken to that report. The last name in the series will not be underlined, as that is the report you are currently viewing.

## **Changing the Class**

Your access privileges determine which district, school, and class results you can view.



# **Report Tabs**

Report tabs allow you to switch among the various viewing options that exist. The three tabs correspond to three of the components of the mCLASS:Math assessment: Screening, Progress Monitoring, and Diagnostic Interviews.

🗜 Screening 🛛 📈 Progress Monitoring	🙂 Diagnostic Interviews	
-------------------------------------	-------------------------	--

Each tab's reports provide different ways of filtering information to support rich data analysis that can be used for classroom instructional changes.

#### **Screening Class Report**

The Screening Class Report displays the scores and percentiles of measures for all children in a class during the selected benchmark window.

Scores reflect the number of correct responses in one minute, and district-level percentiles may help you gauge a student's performance relative to other students in your district. (Please note that these may fluctuate but will stabilize as data becomes available.)

Sort by student name, Overall Status, or Risk Level within a measure. Click a student's name to open the Student Report or click the Progress Monitoring tab to view a Progress Monitoring Class Report.



66
# **Student Report**

The Student Report provides a rich history of a student's mathematical development. Results are documented each year a student participates in the assessment, for all grades and assessment periods.

The gray boxes represent measures that have yet to be completed, while the empty areas mean that the measure is not required for the student's grade or time of year.



## **Progress Monitoring Class Report**

The Progress Monitoring Class Report lists all results for measures administered between Screenings, from Beginning of the Year to Middle of the Year and Middle of the Year to End of the Year. There are no reports for any other time frames. To view every week of the time span, click **Previous** and **Next**.

Each assessment period's Risk Level displays as well as the Overall Status established at the beginning of the time span.



Only one score can display for each week. Weeks in which there are multiple results are marked by an ellipsis. When you hover the mouse over those scores, information for each administration of that week pops up. Click a score to open the Student Progress Report.

## **Student Progress Report**

The Student Progress Report shows both Screening and Progress Monitoring scores for an individual student and measure. It also displays the Benchmark and End-of-Year Goals with an Aim Line from the first Benchmark result to the End of Year goal. The objective is for all results to be above the Aim Line, meaning the student is making sufficient advancement toward the upcoming goal. Students who score below the Aim Line three or more times consecutively require significant and immediate intervention. Those scores become red on the Student Progress Report, alerting you to that urgency.



### REFERENCES

- Ansari, D. & Karmiloff-Smith, A. (2002). Atypical trajectories of number development: a neuroconstructivist perspective. Trends in Cognitive Sciences, 6(12), 511-516.
- Baroody, A.J. (1987). Children's mathematical thinking: A developmental framework for preschool, primary, and special education teachers. New York: Teachers College Press.
- Baroody, A.J., & Dowker, A. (Eds.). (2003). The development of arithmetic concepts and skills: Recent research and theory. Mahwah, NJ: Lawrence Erlbaum Associates, Publishers.
- Bergan, J.R., Sladeczek, I.E., Schwarz, R.D., & Smith, A.N. (1991). Effects of a measurement and planning system on kindergarteners' cognitive development and educational programming. American Educational Research Journal, 28(3), 683-714.
- Berch, D.B. (2005). Making sense of number sense: Implications for children with mathematical disabilities. Journal of Learning Disabilities, 38(4), 333-339.
- Bowman, B.T., Donovan, M.S., & Burns, M.S. (Eds.). (2001). Eager to learn: Educating our preschoolers. Washington, DC: National Academy Press.
- Bransford, J.D., Brown, A.L., & Cocking, R.R. (Eds.). (1998). How people learn: Brain, mind, experience, and school. Washington, DC: National Academy Press.
- Deno, S.L. (1985). Curriculum-based measurement: The emerging alternative. Exceptional Children, 52, 219-232.
- Denton, K., & West, J. (2002). Children's reading and mathematics achievement in kindergarten and first grade. Washington, DC: National Center for Education Statistics.
- Geary, D.C., Hoard, M.K., Byrd-Craven, J., & DeSoto, M.C. (2004). Strategy choices in simple and complex addition: Contributions of working memory and counting knowledge for children with mathematical disability. Experimental Child Psychology, 88, 121-151.
- Geary, D.C., Hoard, M.K., & Hamson, C.O. (1999). Numerical and arithmetical cognition: Patterns of functions and deficits in children at risk for mathematical disability. Journal of Experimental Child Psychology, 74, 213-231.
- Gelman, R., & Gallistel, R. (1978). The child's understanding of number. Cambridge, MA: Harvard University Press.
- Gersten, R., Jordan, N.C., & Flojo, J. R. (2005). Early identification and interventions for students with mathematics difficulties. Journal of Learning Disabilities, 38(4), 293-304.
- Ginsburg, H.P. (1997). Entering the child's mind: The clinical interview in psychological research and practice. New York: Cambridge University Press.
- Ginsburg, H.P. & Baroody, A.J. (2003). Test of Early Mathematics Ability, 3rd edition. Austin, TX: Pro-Ed, Incorporated.
- Ginsburg, H.P., Cannon, J., Eisenband, J.G., & Pappas, S. (2006). Mathematical thinking and learning. In K. McCartney & D. Phillips (Eds.), Handbook of Early Child Development (pp. 208-229). Oxford, England: Blackwell.

#### REFERENCES

- Ginsburg, H.P., Klein, A., & Starkey, P. (1998). The Development Of Children's Mathematical Thinking: Connecting Research With Practice.
- Ginsburg, H.P., Klein, A., & Starkey, P. (1998). The development of children's mathematical thinking: Connecting research with practice. In I. Sigel & A. Renninger (Eds.), Handbook of Child Psychology (5th ed., Vol. 4, pp. 401-476). New York, NY: John Wiley & Sons.
- Hupert, N. (2005, March). Supporting teachers' use of DIBELS data with handheld computers. Paper presented at the DIBELS Summit 2005, Albuquerque, NM.
- Jordan, N.C., Hanich, L.B., & Uberti, H.Z. (2003). Mathematical thinking and learning difficulties. In A.J. Baroody & A. Dowker (Eds.), The development of arithmetic concepts and skills: Constructing adaptive expertise (pp. 359-383). Mahwah, NJ: Lawrence Erlbaum Associates, Publishers.
- Jordan, N.C., Kaplan, D., Olah, L.N., & Locuniak, M.N. (2006). Number sense growth in Kindergarten: A longitudinal investigation of children at risk for mathematics difficulties. Child Development, 77(1), 153-175.
- Kilpatrick, J., Swafford, J., & Findell, B. (Eds.). (2001). Adding it up: Helping children learn mathematics. Washington, DC: National Academy Press for National Research Council.
- Landry, S. (2004). The report of the State Center For Early Childhood Development Advisory Committee on Senate Bill 76: Feasibility of coordinating government-funded child-care programs in a manner that promotes access to child-care programs and results in improved school readiness. Houston, TX: University of Texas Health Science Center.
- Lembke, E., & Foegen, A. (2005, February). Monitoring student progress in early math. Paper presented at the 14th annual meeting of the Pacific Coast Research Conference, San Diego, CA.
- Messick, S. (1989). Validity. In R.L. Linn (Ed.), Educational measurement. (3rd ed.). National Council on Measurement in Education and American Council on Education. New York: American Council on Education, Macmillan.
- Okamoto, Y., & Case, R. (1996). Exploring the microstructure of children's central conceptual structures in the domain of number. In R. Case & Y. Okamoto (Eds.), The role of central conceptual structures in the development of children's thought: Monographs of the Society for Research in Child Development (Vol. 1-2, pp. 27-58). Malden, MA: Blackwell Publishers.
- Pellegrino, J.W., Chudowsky, N., & Glaser, R. (Eds.). (2001). Knowing what students know: The science and design of educational assessment. Washington, DC: National Academy Press.
- Piaget, J. (1976). The child's conception of the world (J. Tomlinson & A. Tomlinson, Trans.). Totowa, NJ: Littlefield, Adams & Co.
- Russell, R.L., & Ginsburg, H.P. (1984). Cognitive analysis of children's mathematics difficulties. Cognition and Instruction, 1, 217-244.
- Schumacker, R.E., & Lomax, R.G. (1996). A beginner's guide to structural equation modeling. Mahwah, NJ: Lawrence Erlbaum.

- Siegler, R.S. (1988). Individual differences in strategy choices: Good students, not-so-good students, and perfectionists. Child Development, 59, 833-851.
- Sobel, M.E. (1988). Direct and indirect effects in linear structural equation models. In J. S. Long (Ed.), Common problems / proper solutions. Newbury Park, CA: Sage.
- Texas Education Agency. (2003). A report to the 78th Texas Legislature from the Texas Education Agency: Interim Report on Ed Tech Pilots. Austin, TX: Texas Education Agency.
- Ullman, J.B. (1996). Structural equation modeling. In B.G. Tabachnick & L.S. Fidell, Using multivariate statistics (3rd ed., pp. 709-811). New York: HarperCollins.
- Wright, B. (1991). What number knowledge is possessed by children beginning the kindergarten year of school? Mathematics Education Research Journal, 3(1), 1-16.